
Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 

Admissions 
Risk / Precaution Documentation/Procedure Responsibility Last Review Additional Information 
Operational 

Finance & 
Operational

Finance, Operational, 
Strategic

Strategic  

Strategic

20Page 20 of 40



Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 
Personnel – Risks are Operational/Strategic and Financial 
Risk / Precaution Documentation/Procedure Responsibility Last Review Additional Information 

21Page 21 of 40



Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 

22Page 22 of 40



Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 
Students 
Risk / Precaution Documentation/Procedure Responsibility Last Review Additional Information 

 

23Page 23 of 40



Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 

24Page 24 of 40



Rick Assessment Annual Monitoriing Report 2017-18 
Strategic Risks 
Risk / Precaution Documentation/Procedure Responsibility Last Review Additional Information 

25Page 25 of 40

Don Falk
Text Box
Calgary Girls' School (January 20, 2018) Retrieved from http://calgarygirlsschool.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/09/Public-October-2017-Board-Package.pdf.



 
 

Don Falk 
Superintendent 

Phone: 780-416-2353 
Email: dfalk@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
January 20, 2018 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Don Falk – Superintendent  
 
Subject: Quarterly Financial Report 
 
Background:  
Attached for the information of the Board of Directors is the Quarterly Financial Report for the period 
ended November 30, 2017. Secretary-Treasurer Fred de Kleine will speak to the report at the Board 
meeting of January 24, 2018 and respond to questions directors may have.  
 
In keeping with Board Resolution 2017-11-22-05, the Audit Committee reviewed the Quarterly Financial 
Report prior to its presentation to the Board of Directors. Members of the Audit Committee may wish to 
comment on the Report at the Board meeting. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Quarterly Financial Report for the period ended November 30, 2017 be 
received as information. 
 

 
Don Falk – Superintendent 
 
Attachment 

Page 26 of 40



Page 27 of 40



 
 

1 
 

Don Falk 
Superintendent 

Phone: 780-416-2353 
Email: dfalk@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
January 20, 2018 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Don Falk - Superintendent  
 
Re: Draft School Calendar for 2018-19 
 
Background: 
The attached document presents a draft school calendar for the 2018-19 school year. The intent at this 
time is to present a draft calendar for discussion by the Board and adoption in principle. Following this 
initial consideration by the Board, it is recommended that the draft calendar be presented for discussion 
and feedback to the School Council and school staff, with a view toward adoption at the February 2018 
meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
Key features of the draft proposed calendar include the following: 

1. Section 56 of the School Act establishes the following requirements with respect to planning the 
school year: 

(1) A board shall specify the following: 
(a) the school opening date; 
(b) the number and the days of school operation; 
(c) the length of the school day; 
(d) the number and length of recesses; 
(e) subject to section 39, the number of hours of instruction. 

(2) A board shall specify the vacation periods in a school year, which shall, as a 
minimum, include a vacation period that extends at least from December 24 to January 
2. 
(3) A board in its discretion may declare one day a month to be a school holiday. 
(4) A holiday declared by a municipality does not apply to a school within the 
municipality unless the board declares it to be applicable. 
(5) A board shall, before May 31 in each year, give notice to the Minister of 

(a) the opening and closing dates of all schools under its jurisdiction for the 12-
month period next following, 
(b) the dates of the vacation periods in the school year, and 
(c) the number of hours of instruction to be made available to students in the 
school year

Page 28 of 40



 

2 
 

 
 

2. According to Article 4.12 of the collective agreement with the Alberta Teachers’ Association, 
“Teachers will render service for the number of teaching days designated by the Board up to 200 
teaching days, commencing the opening day of school in each school year, exclusive of vacation 
periods, weekends and general holidays of the Province of Alberta.”   

3. The draft calendar provides for 193 days of school operation. Of these, 179 are instructional 
days and 14 are non-instructional days. By comparison, the approved 2018-19 calendar for Elk 
Island Public Schools includes 192 days of school operation, of which 181 are instructional days. 
A 2018-19 calendar has been approved “in principle” by Elk Island Catholic Schools. It includes 
193 days of school operation, of which 179 are instructional days. 

4. The draft calendar is designed to be consistent, in substantial measure, with the calendars of Elk 
Island Public Schools (EIPS) and Elk Island Catholic Schools (EICS) respectively, although not 
necessarily in perfect alignment with either. The need for consistency is prompted by our 
school’s agreement with EIPS with respect to bus transportation services and by an 
acknowledgment that some families with children enrolled in our school have other children 
who are enrolled in EIPS or EICS schools. The need for uniqueness is a reflection of the 
distinctive nature and focus of our school and the consequent need for professional 
development opportunities and planning activities that are different from those in other school 
jurisdictions.  

5. As outlined in greater detail below, three of the non-instructional days are identified as days-in-
lieu for “… parent teacher meetings related to report cards and Individual Program Plans,” as 
per the collective agreement with the Alberta Teachers’ Association. 

6. Of the 179 instructional days in the proposed calendar, 169 are full days and 10 provide for early 
dismissal on staff meeting days. When combined with the school’s current daily schedule, this 
generates a total of 956.6 hours of instructional time during the course of the year, which is 
above the minimum of 950 hours required by the School Act. 

7. Classes for students begin on September 4, 2018, and conclude on the June 27, 2019. These 
start and end dates are consistent with both EIPS and EICS. 

8. The draft calendar includes a Fall Break in November (incorporating one in-lieu day), a two-week 
Christmas Break during the last week of December and the first week of January, and a Spring 
Break (incorporating one in-lieu day) that begins on Friday, March 22, with classes resuming on 
Monday, April 1. 

9. Additional holidays (i.e. those not included in other vacation periods) are Labour Day, 
Thanksgiving Day, Family Day, Good Friday, Easter Monday, and Victoria Day. A PD Day (May 17) 
extends the Victoria Day weekend to four days for students. 

10. The proposed calendar includes 14 non-instructional days, distributed as follows: 
a. Planning days (4) – two days prior to the first day of instruction for students, one on 

October 7 (IPP development), and one after the last instructional day for students. 
b. Professional Development (6): 

i. One of three non-instructional days at the beginning of the school year 
ii. Friday, September 21, 2018 

iii. February 7 & 8, 2019 (North Central Teachers’ Convention) 
iv. February 15, 2019 
v. May 17, 2019 

c. Intake Day (1) - a day on which prospective students will be assessed for possible 
enrolment at New Horizons School; scheduled for March 8, 2019. 

Page 29 of 40



 

3 
 

d. Days in lieu of parent-teacher conferences (3) - as per the collective agreement with the 
Alberta Teachers’ Association.   

 
Recommendations: 
The following recommendations are presented for the consideration of the Board of Directors: 

1. That the draft calendar for the 2018-19 school year be approved in principle. 
2. That the draft calendar be presented to the School Council and school staff for discussion and 

feedback and that, giving consideration to the feedback received, it be presented to the Board 
of Directors for final approval at the February 2018 Board meeting.  

 
 

 
 
Don Falk – Superintendent 
 
Attachment 

Page 30 of 40



 

School Calendar Template © calendarlabs.com 

 

    School Calendar 2018-19 
 

August 2018 
Su M Tu W Th F S 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 
September 2018 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       
 

 
October 2018 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       
 

 
November 2018 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30  

       
 

 
December 2018 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31      
 

 
January 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31   

       
 

 
February 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28   

       
 

 
March 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31       
 

 
April 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     

       
 

 
May 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

       
 

 
June 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       
 

 
July 2019 

Su M Tu W Th F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31    

       
 

 
  Holiday / School Closure   Day in Lieu of P-T Conferences (no students or staff) 

      
  PD / Organizational Day – school closed to students   First and Last Day of School 

      
  Early Dismissal / Staff Meeting    

 

Page 31 of 40



 

School Calendar Template © calendarlabs.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operational and Instructional Days 
Month Days of School Operation Days of Student Instruction 
August 3 0 
September 19 18 
October 22 21 
November 18 17 
December 15 15 
January 19 18 
February 19 16 
March 16 14 
April 20 20 
May 22 21 
June 20 19 
Total 193 179 

 
 

Instructional Hours 
Type of Day Days Minutes / Day Hours / Year 
Regular 169 324 912.6 
Early Dismissal 10 264 44.0 
Total 179 ----- 956.6 

 
 

School Vision 
Enabling gifted students to strive for excellence in a positive academic learning 
environment that fosters social and emotional growth for each student. 

 

Important Dates 
Organizational /PD Days August 29, 30, 31 
Labour Day September 3 
Classes Begin for Students September 4 
Professional Development Day September 21 
Professional Development Day October 5 
Thanksgiving Day October 8 
Fall Break November 12-16 
Days in Lieu of P/T Conferences November 16, January 25 & March 22 
Christmas Break December 24 – January 4 
Teachers’ Convention February 7, 8 
Professional Development Day February 15 
Family Day February 18 
Intake Day March 8 
Spring Break March 25-29 
Good Friday April 19 
Easter Monday April 22 
Professional Development Day May 17 
Victoria Day May 20 
Final Day for Students June 27 
Organizational Day June 28 

Page 32 of 40



 
 

  

Don Falk 
Superintendent 

Phone: 780-416-2353 
Email: dfalk@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
January 20, 2018 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Don Falk – Superintendent  
 
Subject: Statement of Territorial Acknowledgment 
 
Background:  
At the Board meeting of December 20, 2017, Administration was requested to bring background 
information and a recommendation to the January 2018 Board meeting with respect to the matter of a 
statement of territorial acknowledgment. The information and recommendations that follow have been 
prepared in response to that request. 
 
The Final Report of the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada (2015) includes ninety-four calls 
to action. Of these, the following seven are focused specifically on education.  
 

6. We call upon the Government of Canada to repeal Section 43 of the Criminal Code 
of Canada. (Section 43 reads as follows: Every schoolteacher, parent or person standing in the 
place of a parent is justified in using force by way of correction toward a pupil or child, as the 
case may be, who is under his care, if the force does not exceed what is reasonable under the 
circumstances.) 

7. We call upon the federal government to develop with Aboriginal groups a joint strategy to 
eliminate educational and employment gaps between Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal Canadians. 

8. We call upon the federal government to eliminate the discrepancy in federal education funding 
for First Nations children being educated on reserves and those First Nations children being 
educated off reserves. 

9. We call upon the federal government to prepare and publish annual reports comparing funding 
for the education of First Nations children on and off reserves, as well as educational and income 
attainments of Aboriginal peoples in Canada compared with non-Aboriginal people. 

10. We call on the federal government to draft new Aboriginal education legislation with the full 
participation and informed consent of Aboriginal peoples. The new legislation would include a 
commitment to sufficient funding and would incorporate the following principles: 

i. Providing sufficient funding to close identified educational achievement gaps within one 
generation. 

ii. Improving education attainment levels and success rates. 
iii. Developing culturally appropriate curricula. 
iv. Protecting the right to Aboriginal languages, including the teaching of Aboriginal 

languages as credit courses.

Page 33 of 40



 

 

 
v. Enabling parental and community responsibility, control, and accountability, similar to 

what parents enjoy in public school systems. 
vi. Enabling parents to fully participate in the education of their children. 

vii. Respecting and honouring Treaty relationships. 
11. We call upon the federal government to provide adequate funding to end the backlog of First 

Nations students seeking a post-secondary education. 
12. We call upon the federal, provincial, territorial, and Aboriginal governments to develop culturally 

appropriate early childhood education programs for Aboriginal families. 
 

In keeping with Call to Action 10.vii and the principle to which it speaks, many school jurisdictions have 
adopted a statement of territorial acknowledgment. Examples of such statements in neighbouring 
jurisdictions include the following: 
 

1. Elk Island Public Schools 
We acknowledge with respect the history and culture of the peoples with whom Treaty 6 was 
signed and the land upon which Elk Island Public Schools reside. We also acknowledge the 
traditional homeland of the Métis Nation. We recognize our responsibility as Treaty members 
and honour the heritage and gifts of the First Peoples. We commit to moving forward in 
partnership with Indigenous communities in a spirit of collaboration and reconciliation. 

 
2. Elk Island Catholic Schools 

We acknowledge that the land on which we gather is Treaty 6 territory and a traditional meeting 
ground and home for many Indigenous Peoples, including Cree, Saulteaux, Blackfoot, Nakota, 
Sioux, and on the homeland of the Métis Nation. 

 
3. Parkland School Division 

We honour all the many First Nations, Métis, and Inuit whose footsteps have marked these lands 
for centuries. We acknowledge that the ancestral and traditional lands on which we gather are 
Treaty 6 territory, a traditional meeting ground for many Indigenous peoples, and in particular 
our neighbors, Paul First Nation, Enoch Cree Nation, Alexis Nakota Sioux Nation, and Alexander 
Cree Nation; on whose territory we work, live, and play, and on whose territory we stand.  

 
4. Edmonton Public Schools (Board Meeting Minutes – September 6, 2016) 

The Board Chair called the meeting to order with recognition that we are on Treaty 6 Territory, a  
traditional meeting grounds, gathering place, and travelling route to the Cree, Saulteaux, 
Blackfoot, Métis, Dene and Nakota Sioux. We acknowledge all the many First Nations, Métis, and 
Inuit whose footsteps have marked these lands for centuries. 

 
5. Edmonton Catholic Schools (Board Meeting Minutes – May 1, 2017) 

Board Chair Thibert acknowledged that we are on the traditional land of Treaty 6 and home of 
Métis Nation of Alberta Zone 4. We also acknowledge the Inuit and other diverse Indigenous 
peoples whose ancestors have marked this territory for centuries, a place that has welcomed 
many peoples from around the world to make their home here. We, at Edmonton Catholic 
Schools, commit to restoring and honouring the Truth and Reconciliation calls to action; we 
strongly believe that truth must be acknowledged to move forward to reconciliation. Together 

Page 34 of 40



 

 

we call upon all our collective communities to build a stronger understanding of all peoples who 
dwell on this land we call home. 

 
6. University of Alberta 

The University of Alberta respectfully acknowledges that we are located on Treaty 6 territory, a 
traditional gathering place for diverse Indigenous peoples including the Cree, Blackfoot, Metis, 
Nakota Sioux, Iroquois, Dene, Ojibway/ Saulteaux/Anishinaabe, Inuit, and many others whose 
histories, languages, and cultures continue to influence our vibrant community. 
 

Recommendations: 
With the information presented above as background, the following recommendations are presented 
for the consideration of the Board of Directors: 

1. That the Board of Directors indicate its respect and honour for the Treaty 6 relationship by 
adopting a statement of territorial acknowledgement. 

2. That the Board consider the following wording for its statement of territorial acknowledgment: 
The Board of Directors of the New Horizons Charter School Society respectfully acknowledges 
that the land on which we meet is Treaty 6 territory, a traditional home, gathering place, and 
travelling route for diverse Indigenous Peoples, including Cree, Saulteaux, Blackfoot, Nakota, 
Sioux, as well as the homeland of the Métis Nation. We recognize our responsibility as Treaty 
members and honour the heritage and gifts of the First Peoples of this land. 

3. That the Board express its statement of territorial acknowledgment at the beginning of each 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
 

 

Page 35 of 40



 

Board Work Plan 2016-17 Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Board of Directors – Work Plan for 2017-18 
 

September   Adopt Board Work Plan for 2017-18  
  Receive Counsellor’s Report for 2016-17 School Year  
  Set date for October Board meeting  
  Receive report on provincial achievement test results (closed meeting)  
  Set date for NHCS Society AGM  
    
    
October  Conduct SGM; Hold Board elections  
  Elect Board executive officers (must be within one week of SGM)  
  Select members for Board standing committees  
  Set dates for Board meetings (motion required)  
  Notify Service Alberta of change in executive officers  
  Sign Board Member Code of Conduct – Policy #101  
  Receive Accountability Pillar Results Report for October 2017  
  Attend TAAPCS Annual General Meeting  
  Receive enrolment report for September 30, 2017  
  Conduct initial orientation session for new Board members  
  Submit request to Alberta Education for modular classrooms  
    
    
November  Conduct AGM of NHCS Society  
  Approve final Three-Year Education Plan 2017-18 to 2019-20  
  Approve revised budget for 2017-18  
  Approve Annual Education Results Report 2017-18  
  Approve Audited Financial Statement Year Ending Aug 31/17  
  Receive Report #1 from School Council  
    
    
December  Receive Class Size Report for 2017-18  
    
    
January  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Sep - Nov 2017  
  Receive mid-year progress report on Three-Year Education Plan 2017-20  
    
    
February  Approve school calendar for 2018-19  
  Stakeholder Forum – Gather input on possible Education Plan priorities  
  Prepare breakfast for school staff – Feb 16  
  Celebrate Grand Re-opening – Feb 21  
    
    

 

Page 36 of 40



 

Board Work Plan 2016-17 Page 2 of 2 

March  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Dec 2017 – Feb 2018  
  Approve Three-Year Capital Plan for 2018-19 to 2020-21  
  Board Retreat – Identify priorities for upcoming Education Plan  
  Administer Board-developed Stakeholder Survey  
   
   
April  Provide provisional approval to Education Plan 2018-19 to 2020-21  
    
    
May  Attend TAAPCS Spring General Meeting  
  Approve Budget for 2018-19  
  Receive Accountability Pillar Results Report for May 2017  
  Receive Board-developed stakeholder survey results  
  Consider salary adjustment for support staff, senior administration  
  Receive report from FANHS  
    
    
June  Assess Board Work Plan progress for 2017-18  
  Receive Quarterly Financial Report for Mar – May 2018  

 
 Schedule SGM of NHCS Society (requires 21 days’ notice; must be on or 

before Oct 10)  

  Schedule September 2018 Board meeting  
  Set date for Board Housekeeping Retreat  
  Receive Report #2 from School Council  
    
    
Ongoing  Consider proposals for new or amended Board policies  
  Receive recommendations from Board committees  
    
    
Annually  Negotiate collective agreement with ATA (as needed)  
  Undertake Superintendent evaluation  
  Undertake Board evaluation  
    
As Needed  Meet with:   
  - County Council  
  - MLAs  
    

 

Page 37 of 40



 
 

_____________________________________________________________ 
1000 Strathcona Drive, Sherwood Park, AB T8A 3R6 

P: 780-416-2353     F: 780-467-0274     W: newhorizons.ab.ca 
 

Nicole Pasemko 
Chair – Board of Directors 

Phone: 780-416-2353 
Email: npasemko@newhorizons.ca 

 

 
 
 
 
January 18, 2018 
 
The Honourable David Eggen 
Minister of Education 
228 Legislature Building 
10800 – 97 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB T5K 2B6 
 
Minister Eggen: 
 
The Board of Directors of New Horizons School is pleased to report that our much-anticipated school 
modernization is now nearing completion. Although a few tasks still require “finishing touches,” the 
students and staff of our school are already benefitting from their newly-renovated learning 
environment. Sincere thanks are extended to you and the Government of Alberta for your support in 
providing our school community with such a wonderful school facility. 
 
We are also grateful for the many messages of support that you have extended to charter schools over 
the past several months. We were delighted, for example, to witness your attendance at the Charter 
Schools Conference in October 2017 and greatly appreciated your words of commendation at that time 
for the work of Alberta’s charter schools.  
 
We have also been encouraged by the invitation you extended to charter schools to continue to submit 
requests to you; it is in that context that the following comments are presented for your consideration. 
 
In our letter to you of November 11, 2016, we requested an increase in our school’s enrolment cap. 
Premised on the enrolment pressures we faced then – pressures that have only increased since that 
time – we asked that our current enrolment cap of 300 students be increased to 450, so as to 
accommodate currently-enrolled students as they advance through the grades, as well as to maintain 
our practice of enrolling two classes of students at the entry levels. 
 
Your denial of our request (May 12, 2017) prompted us to focus, not so much on enrolment pressures, 
but rather on the extent to which our charter mandate would be enhanced with increased enrolment. 
“Sufficient rationale outlining how an increase in the enrolment cap would enhance your charter’s 
mandate was not provided,” was the specific comment that encouraged us to expand our thinking.

Page 38 of 40



 

 

 
With that in mind, we are pleased to re-submit our request for an enrolment cap increase – again from 
300 students to 450 – and, in support of our request, to offer the following comments with respect to 
the enhancement of our charter mandate. 
 

1. A key statement in our school’s charter reads as follows: 
New Horizons School was originally established to best serve the learning needs of gifted 
children. This continues to be its fundamental reason for existence.  
 

The recent growth in our elementary school enrolment has resulted in the establishment of two 
classes at each grade level. This has enabled the introduction of “grade partners” for teachers in 
the elementary grades. In turn, this has provided greater opportunity for teacher collaboration, 
teacher professional growth and, ultimately, enhanced learning opportunities for students. We 
strongly believe that the introduction of grade partners in the elementary grades has enabled 
our school to better serve the learning needs of gifted children. We now seek to extend that 
“best service” to students in the upper grades; an increase in our enrolment cap will enable us 
to do exactly that.  

 
2. As a school with an historically small junior high enrolment, we have been limited in our capacity 

to hire teachers who are specialists in the core subject areas and to provide students with a 
broad range of learning opportunities with respect to option courses. An enrolment cap increase 
would enable us to address both of these limitations by providing for additional teaching staff at 
the junior high level. This would most surely result in the enhancement of our charter mandate 
“to best serve the learning needs of gifted children.”  
 

3. The provision of high school programming has been included in each of our five approved 
charters. In fact, the ministerial letter which established our school’s enrolment cap of 300 
students (Minister Liepert’s letter of February 8, 2007) includes the following statement: 

I am pleased to approve a five-year renewal of your charter, the maximum term allowed 
by the Charter Schools Regulation, from September 1, 2007 to August 31, 2012, to 
operate an Early Childhood Services to Grade 12 school with a maximum enrolment of 
300 students. 

 
We maintain that full achievement of our charter mandate, as consistently expressed in all five 
of our approved charters and as supported by the ministerial letter which introduced our 
school’s enrolment cap, will require the establishment of a high school program at some point. 
Only when gifted students have the opportunity to complete their entire K-12 program in a 
congregated setting will we have “best served the learning needs of gifted children.” To fulfill 
that mandate, however, there is first a need to create the strongest possible junior high school 
program, so as to create the necessary base for establishment of a high school program. An 
increase in the enrolment cap is essential if we are to provide that opportunity for our students. 
 

Having documented our school’s enrolment pressures in our previous letter, we have chosen not to 
focus on it here. Nevertheless, we wish to advise you that our enrolment has grown at a faster rate than 
anticipated in our letter of November 2016; we would be remiss if we did not draw that to your 
attention. (The projected 2017-18 total head count enrolment at the time of our November 2016 letter 
was 300; actual enrolment came in at 318.) 

Page 39 of 40



 

 

Thank you for giving consideration to our request. We would welcome the opportunity to discuss this 
matter with you in person. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Nicole Pasemko – Chair, Board of Directors 
 
cc: Annie McKitrick – Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister of Education and MLA, Sherwood Park 

Page 40 of 40


